
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, August 9, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 August 2, 2016 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

      

Commissioners  
a. Rescinding Resolution 2015-655, Interlocal Agreement MATRICS for Multi-Agency Three 

Rivers Information & Communication Systems  

District Court  

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111   

Facilities  

c. Purchase Authorization for Services to Treat Carpenter Ants from Rose Hart Pest Control  

d. Contract w/Allied Systems Products for Purchase & Installation of a Compact File Storage 

System  

Human Services   
e. Contract w/WA St Department of Commerce for Community Development Block Grant  

f. Grant Agreement w/Elijah Family Homes for Housing Subsidies  

Juvenile  

g. Contract w/Apollo Heating & Air for HVAC System Maintenance  

Office of Public Defense 

h. Superior Court Public Defense Service Agreement w/R Swinburson  

i. Amended Caseload District Court Public Defense Contract w/A Farabee  

Public Safety  

j. Agreement w/Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties for Prosser Teen Program 

Investment  

k. Purchase Authorization for Seven (7) Smith and Wesson M&P15 Rifles for Sheriff’s Office  

Public Works  

l. Memorandum of Understanding w/State of WA DNR Public Land Survey for  

Permit/Covered Monuments  

m. Traffic Control on County Roads re Speed Limit – Summit View  

n. Traffic Control on County Roads re Speed Limit – Bent Road  

o. Contract with B.C.V., Inc. for Hank Road Asphalt Repair & CR12 Pathway Asphalt Repair 

Project  

Sheriff  

p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120  

 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

August 9, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Scheduled Business 

 

Final Plat of the Altered Plat of Tripple Vista Estates No. 2; SUB 2016-001 ~ R. Lott  

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
 

 

     

 

 

  

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, August 2, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Planning Manager Mike 

Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; 

Public Services Administrator Fred Bowen; Facilities Manager Dan Waggoner; Erhiza Rivera, 

Chief Deputy Treasurer; Treasurer Duane Davidson; Assessor Bill Spencer and Chief Deputy 

Assessor Adam Morasch.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of June 26, 2016 were approved.   

 

Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “l”.  

Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Commissioners 
a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107   

Juvenile  

b. Agreement with Pasco High School for Probation Counselor  

c. Agreement with Chiawana High School for Probation Counselor  

Office of Public Defense 

d. Public Defense Services Agreement w/D Orr for Adult Drug Court  

e. Termination of Juvenile Public Defense Contract w/P Peterson  

f. Amended Contract w/M Trombley for Superior Court Public Defense Services   

Public Works  
g. Purchase Authorization for Tires from Les Schwab Tire Center  



 - 2 - 

h. Purchase Authorization from Envirotech Services for Deicer  

Sheriff  

i. Amended Agreement w/Softcode for Software License and Maintenance  

j. Interlocal Agreement for Special Investigations Unit to Investigate Officer Incidents  

Superior Court  

k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123    

Sustainable Development 
l. Termination of Amended & Restated Debt Participation Agreement for Jail & District 

Court Expansion of 2001  

 

Security System Retrofit Update  

 

Dan Waggoner updated the Board and said they received eight proposals to the RFP and 

interviewed four contractors.  He said they have selected the top three (Southern Folger, Sierra 

Detention Systems, and Argyle Security) and would like to move forward with dispersing the 

technical documents and request a full detailed proposal from each of them.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to accept the three candidates and move forward with 

round three of the RFP selection process.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the 

motion carried.  

 

Fairgrounds Buildings 2 & 3 

 

Fred Bowen said the Board previously approved moving forward with the development of 

construction plans and specifications for the renovation of Buildings 2 and 3 at the Fairgrounds.  

He said as development proceeded, it was suggested that a timber line roof structure matching the 

décor of the existing buildings be placed over the plaza area creating a central entry point and 

provide cover from adverse weather conditions as the public entered the buildings.  He said the 

total estimated cost was $200,000.   

 

MOTION:   Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the Public Services Administrator to 

proceed with the addition of the timber line roof structure over the plaza area between buildings 2 

& 3 at the Fairgrounds.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

 

Assessor Bill Spencer and Adam Morasch, Chief Deputy Assessor presented a new contract with 

Automatic Funds Transfer Services to provide formatting, printing and mailing of the Benton 

County Change of Value, New Construction, and Personal Property Notices.  Mr. Spencer said 

that adding the personal property notices would save approximately 25%, not including staff time.  

 

Chairman Small asked if the contract was approved by the PA and Mr. Spencer said that Reid Hay 

reviewed and approved it.   

 



 - 3 - 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the contract between Benton County and 

Automatic Funds Transfer Services as presented.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, 

the motion carried. 

 

Other Business 

 

BCES/SECOMM 

 

Commissioner Delvin said he talked to Chief Skinner about a presentation to BCES and asked 

Chairman Small if it sounded reasonable.  Chairman Small said it was moving in the right direction 

with BCES and Franklin County and Pasco coming on to the system.  There was a discussion about 

costs, etc. and Commissioner Beaver expressed concern about outside committees suggesting how 

Benton County spend its money.   

 

Chairman Small said it was not going in that direction right now; they were just showing it and 

that was it.  Before the discussion went any further, it would be presented to the Board so it could 

be assessed and it was not a decision to be made by BCES.   

 

Commissioner Delvin said he was told they would become members of SECOMM only, they 

would each pay $500,000 to be a member of SECOMM and it would go into the restricted 

improvement fund for upgrades.  Additionally, if they needed anything in Franklin County (like a 

tower) they would pay for it and Benton County’s fees should not change at all for the services 

received from SECOMM.   

 

Health District 

 

Commissioner Delvin said the Health District requested permission to sublease to the State for 

someone to work on some programs.  He said he did not have a problem with that but maybe 

should have administration review it.  Commissioner Beaver said having another tenant would be 

fine as long as Benton County received the rent.  Mr. Sparks commented that Benton County still 

paid $¼ million on the bonds for that building. 

 

Jail Suicide Wing 

 

Chairman Small said he wanted an update on this issue and wanted to roll on this sooner than later; 

the County already had a big chunk of change out on architects and he wanted to move ahead. 

 

Commissioner Delvin said the question for him was if the population was down, would it stay 

down and could they modify with the existing structure.  However, if the capacity went up in the 

future, maybe they would build out then.   

 

Mr. Sparks recommended the County complete a peer review on this project.  He said they had an 

architect and the Sheriff review it but it was a $6 million project and somebody should look at it 

from a mental health perspective.  Additionally, things have changed since they first talked about 

this 2-3 years ago and originally it was an area to watch people and now it was a 20 bed facility.   

 



 - 4 - 

Commissioner Beaver said he agreed they needed somebody to come in and review this that has 

done this before.  Commissioner Delvin said he wanted to have the Sheriff come in and Mr. Bowen 

said he would invite him to come in and discuss the issue.   

 

Mental Health Court – Housing Issue 

 

Commissioner Delvin said Ms. Symons (Mental Health Coordinator) was going to put together a 

committee to look at that issue before they sent the letter he spoke about at the previous meeting.   

 

The Board recessed, reconvening at 9:36 a.m. 

 

Executive Session – Pending Litigation 

 

The Board went into executive session at 9:36 a.m. for approximately 20 minutes to discuss 

pending litigation with DPA Ryan Brown.  Also present were David Sparks, Loretta Smith Kelty, 

Cami McKenzie and special counsel Steve DiJulio via/telephone conference.   

 

The Board came out at 9:50 a.m.  Mr. Brown said the Board discussed pending litigation and took 

no action.   

 

The Board recessed until 10:30 a.m.  

 

Columbia Irrigation District Interviews 

 

The Board interviewed applicants Volney Davis and Neil Martin for the vacant director position 

in Division #3 of the Columbia Irrigation District.   

 

At 10:47 a.m. the Board indicated it would go into executive session for up to 10 minutes to discuss 

the applicants.  The Board came out of executive session at 10:56 a.m. No action was taken in 

executive session.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin move to appoint Neil Martin to fill the vacant director position 

for Division 3 of the Columbia Irrigation District.   Commissioner Beaver seconded. 

 

Discussion 

 

Commissioner Delvin encouraged Mr. Davis to learn more about the district and find out issues 

that CID was currently dealing with.  He also encouraged him to volunteer in the community to 

get some experience with volunteer groups or other boards.   

 

Commissioner Beaver also suggested he stay involved and active in the community and do 

research about boards and commissions.   

 

Chairman Small reminded Mr. Davis he was an asset as an employee of the Fairgrounds and to 

remember to talk about what he had learned out there working with the different entities. 

 



 - 5 - 

Upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Vouchers 

 

Check Date: 07/15/2016 

 

Warrant #: 141922-142014 

Total all funds: $1,986.62 

 

Check Date:  07/29/2016 

 

Warrant #: 142820-142853 

Total all funds: $747.06 

 

Transfers #: 07291601-07291608 

Total all funds: $517,550.24 

 

Warrant #: 143113-143214 

Total all funds: $260,479.90 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2016-585: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107   

2016-586: Agreement with Pasco High School for Probation Counselor  

2016-587: Agreement with Chiawana High School for Probation Counselor  

2016-588: Public Defense Services Agreement w/D Orr for Adult Drug Court  

2016-589: Termination of Juvenile Public Defense Contract w/P Peterson  

2016-590: Amended Contract w/M Trombley for Superior Court Public Defense Services   

2016-591: Purchase Authorization for Tires from Les Schwab Tire Center  

2016-592: Purchase Authorization from Envirotech Services for Deicer  

2016-593: Amended Agreement w/Softcode for Software License and Maintenance  

2016-594: Interlocal Agreement for Special Investigations Unit to Investigate Officer 

Incidents  

2016-595: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 123    

2016-596: Termination of Amended & Restated Debt Participation Agreement for Jail & 

District Court Expansion of 2001  

2016-597: Contract with Automatic Funds Transfer Services and Benton County Assessor  

2016-598: Appointment of Neil Martin to the Columbia Irrigation District  

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 11:00 

a.m.  

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 



  C. McKenzie  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

         
Member 

 

Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 

 Clerk of the Board      Washington 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF RESCINDING RESOLUTION 2015-655 AND ATTACHED 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (MATRICS) BETWEEN BENTON AND FRANKLIN 

COUNTIES AND THE CITIES OF KENNEWICK, PASCO, AND RICHLAND FOR 

MULTI-AGENCY THREE RIVERS INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS 

 

WHEREAS, per Benton County Resolution 2015-655 dated September 15, 2015 the Board of 

Benton County Commissioners approved and signed the MATRICS Interlocal Agreement 

between Benton and Franklin Counties and the Cities of Kennewick, Pasco and Richland for 

Multi-Agency Three Rivers Information & Communication Systems; and 

 

WHEREAS, Franklin County Board of Commissioners also signed the agreement per Franklin 

County Resolution 2015-341 dated September 9, 2015; and 

 

WHEREAS, to date the Cities of Kennewick, Pasco and Richland have not signed the referenced 

agreement and Benton County desires to rescind the Resolution and Agreement; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 

hereby rescinds Resolution 2015-655 and the attached MATRICS Interlocal Agreement between 

Benton and Franklin Counties and the Cities of Kennewick, Pasco and Richland for Multi-

Agency Three Rivers Information & Communication Systems.   

 

 

 

   

 

WEH
Text Box
a. Rescinding Resolution 2015-655, Interlocal Agreement MATRICS for Multi-Agency Three Rivers Information & Communication Systems



WEH
Text Box
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 111





WEH
Text Box
c. Purchase Authorization for Services to Treat Carpenter Ants from Rose Hart Pest Control









WEH
Text Box
d. Contract w/Allied Systems Products for Purchase & Installation of a Compact File Storage System





























































WEH
Text Box
e. Contract w/WA St Department of Commerce for Community Development Block Grant

























































WEH
Text Box
f. Grant Agreement w/Elijah Family Homes for Housing Subsidies



















































WEH
Text Box
g. Contract w/Apollo Heating & Air for HVAC System Maintenance





























































































WEH
Text Box
h. Superior Court Public Defense Service Agreement w/R Swinburson













































WEH
Text Box
i. Amended Caseload District Court Public Defense Contract w/A Farabee







 

AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: August 9, 2016 
Subject: Service Agreement 

between Benton County and 
Boys & Girls Club of Benton 
and Franklin Counties 

Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer 
Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract      x__ 
Pass Resolution  _____  
Pass Ordinance             _____ 
Pass Motion  _____  
None   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda           __x__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion                ___ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Benton County would like to enter into an agreement with Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin 
Counties for Prosser Teen Program Investment.  
 
Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties are committed to empowering all young people “to 
reach their full potential as productive, caring, responsible citizens.” Funding from the Benton County Gang 
and Crime Prevention Initiative would support the sustainability and expansion of the Teen Program at the 
Prosser Park Branch. The Club opened its doors in 2010, and have seen a steady increase in membership 
since then, with over 60 teen members as of March 2016. 
 
Funding would support resources for staff training, program curriculum, supplies, field trips, and events. 
  

 

SUMMARY 
2016 Budget: $40,000.00, prorated August 1, 2016 – December 31, 2016 
Funding Source: Benton County Public Safety Tax 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 Sign the Resolution to accept proposed agreement 

 Approve proposed agreement by signing all copies where indicated 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding for the services described in this agreement is provided by the Benton County Public Safety Tax. 
There is no impact on the current expense budget. All revenues and expenditures are from the Public 
Safety Tax Fund 0148-101; for a contract amount of $40,000.00.  
 
 
MOTION 
To approve signing a Personal Services Agreement between Benton County and Boys & Girls Club of 
Benton and Franklin Counties by the Board of County Commissioners. 

WEH
Text Box
j. Agreement w/Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties for Prosser Teen Program Investment



cc: Auditor; Treasurer; PA-Contract Compliance; Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties Faulconer 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF SIGNING A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON AND BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF 

BENTON AND FRANKLIN COUNTIES FOR PROSSER TEEN PROGRAM 

INVESTMENT 

 

WHEREAS, in August, 2014, the voters of Benton County approved Proposition 14-5, a 3/10 

of one percent sales and use tax pursuant to RCW 82.14.450 to fund criminal justice and public 

safety programs in Benton County; and 

 

WHEREAS, funding decisions must fall within the parameters and guidance of the text of 

voter-approve Proposition 14-5 where to “improve public safety and combat criminal gang 

activity and other crime by hiring additional police officers, corrections officers and 

prosecutors; continuing the Metro Drug Task Force; funding gang and crime prevention 

efforts; and funding court and clerk programs including a seventh Superior Court Judge; and 

drug and mental health courts”; and 

 

WHEREAS, funding gang and crime prevention efforts, the Benton County Gang and Crime 

Prevention and Intervention Initiative is to improve the quality of life for the residents of 

Benton County by reducing the incidence of gang-related and other crime in Benton County; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on April 12, 2016 the Benton County Board of Commissioners approved funding 

for gang and crime prevention efforts, utilizing an Request for Proposal process; and 

 

WHEREAS, Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties proposed a Prosser Teen 

Program Investment in the annual amount of $40,000.00 for 2016; NOW, THEREFORE 

 

BE IT RESOLVED the amount of $40,000.00, the 2016 annual budgeted amount prorated for 

the remaining five months of 2016, has been approved by the Board of Benton County 

Commissioners; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED each monthly payment will be made payable to Boys & Girls 

Club of Benton and Franklin Counties, and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this agreement will start August 1, 2016. 



cc: Auditor; Treasurer; PA-Contract Compliance; Boys & Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties Faulconer 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

 

 

       

Chairman of the Board  

 

       

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

                

Member 
 

Attest:…………………………….. 

               Clerk of the Board      Constituting the Board of County  

Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 
                   

 

 

 

  



- 1 - 

BENTON COUNTY 

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON 

COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 

Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and Boys 

and Girls Club of Benton and Franklin Counties, with its principal 

offices at 801 N. 18th Ave., Pasco, WA 99301, (hereinafter 

"CONTRACTOR"). 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

This Contract consists of the following documents: 

a. Terms and Conditions (this document);

b. Exhibit A, Scope of Work Prosser Teen Program Investment;

and

c. Exhibit B, Progress Reporting and Measures; and

d. Exhibit C, Prosser Teen Program Investment; and

e. Exhibit D, Invoice.

2. DURATION OF CONTRACT

The term of this Contract shall begin August 1, 2016, and shall 

expire on December 31, 2016. The CONTRACTOR shall complete all 

services by the time(s) specified herein, or if no such time is 

otherwise specified, no later than the expiration date. 

3. SERVICES PROVIDED

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the following services: 

a. A detailed description of the services to be performed by

the CONTRACTOR is set forth in Exhibit A, "Scope of Work",
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by

reference.

b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its own labor and materials.

Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, no material,

labor, or facilities will be furnished by the COUNTY.

c. The CONTRACTOR shall confer with the COUNTY from time to time

during the progress of the services performed. The CONTRACTOR



 

- 2 - 

shall prepare and present status reports in the form of 

Exhibit B demonstrating services completed to date. 

 

4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES 

 

Each party to this Contract shall have a Contract representative. 

Each party may change its representative upon providing written 

notice to the other party. The parties' representatives are as 

follows: 

 

a. For CONTRACTOR: 

 

Brian Ace 

801 N. 18th Ave 

Pasco, WA 99301 

Phone: (509)543-9980 

Fax: 

Email: brian.ace@kidexpert.org 

 

b. For COUNTY: 

 

Shyanne Faulconer 

PO Box 190 

Prosser, WA 99350 

Phone: (509)786-3760 

Fax:  (509)786-3080 

Email: Shyanne.Faulconer@co.benton.wa.us 

 

5. COMPENSATION 

 

For the services performed hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid 

as follows: 

 

a. A detailed description of compensation to be paid by the 

COUNTY for the services set forth in Exhibit A is set forth 

in Exhibit C, “Prosser Teen Program Investment” which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  

Accordingly, for the time period of August 1, 2016, through 

December 31, 2016, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated by COUNTY 

in an amount not to exceed  forty thousand dollars ($40,000). 

 

b. No payment shall be made for any services performed by the 

CONTRACTOR, except for services identified and set forth in 

this Contract. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR may, in accordance with Exhibit D, submit 

invoices to the COUNTY not more than once per month during 



 

- 3 - 

the progress of the services performed for partial payment of 

the services completed to date. The COUNTY shall pay the 

CONTRACTOR in the month following the actual delivery of 

services and will remit payment within thirty (30) days from 

the date of receipt. 

 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid for services rendered under 

this Contract unless and until they have been performed to 

the satisfaction of the COUNTY. 

 

e. In the event the CONTRACTOR has failed to perform any 

substantial obligation to be performed by the CONTRACTOR 

under this Contract and such failure has not been cured within 

ten (10) days following notice from the COUNTY, the COUNTY 

may, in its sole discretion, upon written notice to the 

CONTRACTOR, withhold any and all monies due and payable to 

the CONTRACTOR, without penalty, until such failure to 

perform is cured or otherwise adjudicated. "Substantial" for 

the purposes of this Contract means faithfully fulfilling the 

terms of this Contract with variances only for technical or 

minor omissions or defects. 

 

f. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or any exhibits or 

attachments hereto, the CONTRACTOR will not be paid for any 

billings or invoices presented for services rendered prior to 

the execution of this Contract or after its termination. 

 

6. AMENDMENTS 

 

No amendment or modification shall be made to this 

Contract, unless set forth in a written Contract Amendment 

signed by both parties. Services performed under a Contract 

Amendment shall not proceed until the Contract Amendment is 

duly executed by the COUNTY. 

 

7. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from 

and against any and all claims, actions, suits, liability, 

loss, expenses, damages, and judgments of any nature 

whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees in 

defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or death to 

persons or damage to property or business, which are caused 

in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or 

otherwise, of CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, which arise 

in connection with the services performed under this 



 

- 4 - 

Contract, or are caused or occasioned in whole or in part by 

reason of the presence of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors 

or their property upon or in the proximity of the property of 

the County. PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S obligation 

hereunder shall not extend to injury, sickness, death or 

damage caused by or arising out of the sole negligence of the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 

 

b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY, its officers, 

officials, employees and agents by any employee of the 

CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them 

may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 

Section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on 

the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits 

payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under 

Workers Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 

employee benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood 

by the parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives 

any immunity the CONTRACTOR might have had under such laws, 

including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised Code of 

Washington. By executing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR 

acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been mutually 

negotiated by the parties and that the provisions of this 

Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any contract 

the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent 

performing services hereunder. CONTRACTOR’S obligations under 

this Section [7] shall survive termination and expiration of 

this Contract. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, but are 

not limited to, investigating, adjusting and defending all 

claims alleging loss from action, error or omission, or breach 

of any common law, statutory or other delegated duty by the 

CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents or 

subcontractors. 

 

8. INSURANCE 

 

a. Workers Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State 

of Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations. 

Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers 

compensation coverage shall be provided for all employees of 

CONTRACTOR and employees of any subcontractor or sub-

subcontractor. Coverage shall include bodily injury 

(including death) by accident or disease, which arises out of 

or in connection with the performance of this Contract. 



 

- 5 - 

CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 

from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to 

commencement of work. Except as prohibited by law, CONTRACTOR 

waives all rights of subrogation against the COUNTY for 

recovery of damages to the extent they are covered by workers 

compensation and employers liability. 

 

If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to 

comply with all State of Washington workers compensation 

statutes and regulations and COUNTY incurs fines or is 

required by law to provide benefits to or obtain coverage for 

such employees, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY. 

Indemnity shall include all fines, payment of benefits to 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor employees, or their heirs or 

legal representatives, and the cost of effecting coverage on 

behalf of such employees. Any amount owed to COUNTY by 

CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be 

deducted from any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for 

performance of this Contract. 

 

b. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability 

Insurance: Prior to the start of work under this Contract, 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general liability 

coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to protect the 

CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, 

personal injury and property damage, which may arise from any 

actions or inactions under this Contract by CONTRACTOR or by 

anyone directly employed by or contracting with CONTRACTOR. 

The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits 

shall be as follows: 

 

$2,000,000 General Aggregate 

$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 

$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

 

The commercial general liability policy will contain an 

endorsement naming the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 

officials, employees and agents as an Additional Insured and 

an endorsement that specifically states that CONTRACTOR’s 

commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not 

contributory, with any other insurance maintained by the 

COUNTY. 

 

The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability 

coverage that does not exclude any activity to be performed 

in fulfillment of this Contract and does not exclude liability 



 

- 6 - 

pursuant to the indemnification requirement under Section 

[7]. CONTRACTOR'S commercial general liability policy shall 

provide cross liability coverage, indicating essentially that 

except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights 

or duties specifically assigned in this coverage part to the 

first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 

insured were the only named insured, and separately to each 

insured against whom claims are made or suit is brought. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability 

Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 

 

$1,000,000 Each Accident 

$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 

$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 

c. Automobile Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during 

the life of this Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance 

(ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto 

(Symbol 1), or if the Contractor has no owned autos, hired 

(Symbol 8) and non-owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 

not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident 

for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect CONTRACTOR 

from claims which may arise from the performance of this 

Contract, whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by 

anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

 

d. Other Insurance Provisions: 

 

1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be 
primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance 

programs covering the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 

officers, officials, employees and agents. CONTRACTOR’S 

liability insurance policies must be endorsed to show this 

primary coverage. Any insurance, self-insured retention, 

deductible or risk retention maintained or participated 

in by the COUNTY shall be excess and not contributory to 

CONTRACTOR’S insurance policies. 

 

2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall 

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 

afforded to the COUNTY as an additional insured. 

 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the 
policies shall not affect coverage provided to the COUNTY, 

its officers, officials, employees or agents. 



 

- 7 - 

 

4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, 

except with respect to the limits of the insurer's 

liability. 

 

5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as 

insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate 

certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All 

coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 

requirements stated herein. 

 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage 
required by this Contract are not intended to be an 

indication of exposure nor are they limitations on 

indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits 

than the minimums required in this contract, the COUNTY 

shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits 

maintained by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in 
force from the time services commence until services are 

completed. Certificates, policies, and endorsements 

expiring before completion of services shall be promptly 

replaced. All liability insurance required under this 

Contract, shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.  

 

8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect 
to each insurance policy maintained under this Contract. 

When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition does 

not permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a pre-loss agreement 

to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then 

CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 

endorsement. This requirement shall not apply to any 

policy which includes a condition expressly prohibiting 

waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 

coverage should the CONTRACTOR enter into such a waiver 

of subrogation on a pre-loss basis.  

 

9. Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under this 
Agreement are expressly conditioned upon CONTRACTOR’S 

strict compliance with all insurance requirements. Payment 

to CONTRACTOR may be suspended in the event of non-

compliance. Upon receipt of evidence of CONTRACTOR’S 

compliance, such payments not otherwise subject to 

withholding or set-off will be released to CONTRACTOR. 

 



 

- 8 - 

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers: 

 

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by 

companies authorized to do business under the laws of the 

State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least 

A-VII or better in the most recently published edition of 

Best’s Reports. Any exception to this requirement must be 

reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk 

Manager. If an insurer is not admitted to do business within 

Washington State, all insurance policies and procedures for 

issuing the insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 

RCW and 284-15 WAC. 

  

1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other 
than Auto Liability and Workmen’s Compensation, shall 

specifically include the COUNTY, its elected officials, 

employees and volunteers as an “Additional Insured” by way 

of endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without 

thirty (30) days written prior notice to the COUNTY. Any 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by the COUNTY, its 

elected and appointed officials, employees and agents 

shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall 

not contribute to it. 

 

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements 

attached, are to be provided to the County’s Contract 

Representative referenced in Section 4. 

 

3. All written notices under this Section [8] and notice of 
cancellation or change of required insurance coverages 

shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract Representative 

referenced in Section 4. 

 

4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any 
and all insurance policies specified in this Contract upon 

request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the following 

address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan 

Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336. 

 

9. TERMINATION 

 

a. The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part 

whenever the COUNTY determines, in its sole discretion, that 

such termination is in the best interests of the COUNTY. The 

COUNTY may terminate this Contract upon giving ten (10) days 

written notice by certified mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that 

event, the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for all cost 



 

- 9 - 

incurred by the CONTRACTOR in performing the Contract up to 

the date of such notice. Payment shall be made in accordance 

with the Compensation Section of this Contract. 

 

b. In the event that funding for this project is withdrawn, 

reduced or limited in any way after the effective date of 

this Contract, the COUNTY may summarily terminate this 

Contract notwithstanding any other termination provision in 

this Contract. Termination under this paragraph shall be 

effective upon the date specified in the written notice of 

termination sent by COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR. After the 

effective date, no charges incurred under this Contract shall 

be allowed. 

 

c. If the CONTRACTOR breaches any of its obligations hereunder, 

and fails to cure the breach within ten (10) days of written 

notice to do so by the COUNTY, the COUNTY may immediately 

terminate this Contract by so notifying the CONTRACTOR, in 

which case the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR only for the 

costs of services accepted by the COUNTY, in accordance with 

the Compensation Section of this Contract.  

 

10. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION AND SUBCONTRACTING 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract using 

only its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations 

and duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be 

assigned, delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or 

firm without the prior express written consent of the COUNTY. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed 

to pay any company, person, partnership, or firm, other than 

a bona fide employee working exclusively for CONTRACTOR, any 

fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other 

consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 

making of this Contract. 

 

11. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 

 

The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, 

or waiver of any provision(s) of this Contract does not constitute 

a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice 

the right of the waiving party to enforce any of the provisions of 

this Contract at a later time. All waivers of any provision(s) of 

this Contract shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no 

action or inaction shall be construed to be such a waiver. 

 



 

- 10 - 

12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the 

CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor and not as an agent, 

employee or servant of the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR 

specifically has the right to direct and control CONTRACTOR'S 

own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance 

with the specifications set out in this Contract. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for 

this Contract is set forth in Section [5] of this Contract, 

and neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees are entitled to 

any COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: vacation 

pay, holiday pay, sick leave pay, medical, dental, or other 

insurance benefits, fringe benefits, or any other rights or 

privileges afforded to COUNTY employees. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete 

responsibility and control over all of its subcontractors, 

employees, agents, and representatives. No subcontractor, 

employee, agent, or representative of the CONTRACTOR shall be 

or deem to be or act or purport to act as an employee, agent, 

or representative of the COUNTY. 

 

d. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or 

payments required by federal, state or local law which are 

now or may be enacted during the term of this Contract. 

 

e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its 

employees or agents from their assignment to perform services 

under this Contract upon receipt of a written request to do 

so from the COUNTY'S contract representative or designee. 

 

13. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state and 

local laws, rules and regulations in performing this Contract. 

 

14. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 

 

The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and records 

of the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Contract. 

The CONTRACTOR shall keep, and make available to the County upon 

request, all records relating to the performance of this Contract 

for six (6) years after Contract termination or expiration. 

 

15. NONDISCRIMINATION 



 

- 11 - 

 

The CONTRACTOR, its assignees, delegates, or subcontractors shall 

not discriminate against any person in the performance of any of 

its obligations hereunder on the basis of age, sex, marital status, 

sexual orientation, race, creed, religion, color, national origin, 

honorably discharged veteran or military status, disability, or 

any other protected status. 

 

16. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS/WORKS PRODUCED 

 

a. All reports, drawings, plans, specifications, all forms of 

electronic media, and data and documents produced in the 

performance of the work under this Contract shall be "works 

for hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976 and 

shall be owned by the COUNTY. Ownership includes the right to 

copyright, patent, register, and the ability to transfer 

these rights. The COUNTY agrees that if it uses any materials 

prepared by the CONTRACTOR for purposes other than those 

intended by this Contract, it does so at its sole risk and it 

agrees to hold the CONTRACTOR harmless there from to the 

extent such use is not agreed to in writing by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

b. An electronic copy of all word processing documents shall be 

submitted to the COUNTY upon request or at the end of the job 

using the word processing program and version specified by 

the COUNTY. 

 

17. PATENT/COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from and 

against any claimed action, cause or demand brought against the 

COUNTY, where such action is based on the claim that information 

supplied by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor infringes any patent 

or copyright. The CONTRACTOR shall be notified promptly in writing 

by the COUNTY of any notice of such claim. 

 

18. DISPUTES 

 

Disputes between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY, arising under and 

by virtue of this Contract, shall be brought to the attention of 

the COUNTY at the earliest possible time in order that such matters 

may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. Any 

dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance 

and/or compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the 

COUNTY'S Contract Representative or designee. All rulings, orders, 

instructions and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract Representative 



 

- 12 - 

shall be final and conclusive, subject to CONTRACTOR'S right to 

seek judicial relief. 

 

19. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

The CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and their employees 

shall maintain the confidentiality of all information provided by 

the COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY in performance of this 

Contract, except upon the prior written consent of the COUNTY or 

an order entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The 

CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any 

judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of such information. 

 

20. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

 

a. This Contract has been and shall be construed as having been 

made and delivered within the State of Washington, and it is 

agreed by each party hereto that this Contract shall be 

governed by the laws of the State of Washington, both as to 

its interpretation and performance. 

 

b. Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding 

arising out of this Contract shall be instituted and 

maintained only in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction 

in Benton County, Washington. 

 

21. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 

The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR 

each bind themselves, their partners, successors, executors, 

administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract 

and to the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of 

such other party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 

 

22. SEVERABILITY 

 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or 

provision of this Contract to be illegal, or invalid in whole 

or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall 

not be affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall 

be construed and enforced as if this Contract did not contain 

the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 

b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract is in 

conflict with any statutory provision of the State of 

Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall 

be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be 



 

- 13 - 

in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform 

to such statutory provision. 

 

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 

The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of 

its terms and conditions. Any oral or written representations or 

understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 

excluded. 

 

 

24. NOTICES 

 

Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other 

party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, to the addresses set out in the Contract Representatives 

Section of this Contract. Notice may also be given by facsimile 

with the original to follow by regular mail. Notice shall be deemed 

to be given three days following the date of mailing or 

immediately, if personally served. For service by facsimile, 

service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working 

day. 

 

25. SURVIVABILITY 

 

All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to 

survive the termination and/or expiration of this Contract, shall 

so survive. These terms include, but are not limited to, 

indemnification provisions (Sections [7] and [17]); inspection and 

keeping of records and books (Section [14]); litigation hold notice 

(Section [26]); Public Records Act (Section [27]) and 

confidentiality (Section [19]). 

 

26. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 

 

In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 

increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 

records kept by CONTRACTOR pursuant to Section [14] of this 

agreement may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written 

notice to CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the 

CONTRACTOR to “hold” such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR 

receives such written notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all 

directions therein whether or not such written notice is received 

at a time when a Contract between CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in 

force. Such directions will include, but will not be limited to, 

instructions to suspend the six (6) year purge schedule as set out 

above in Section [14]. 



 

- 14 - 

 

27. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

 

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental 

entity and as such is subject to the requirements of the Public 

Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands 

that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY may be 

required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to 

this Contract actually in its possession or in CONTRACTOR’S 

possession. This may include records that CONTRACTOR might regard 

as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that CONTRACTOR 

provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as confidential 

or proprietary, it agrees to conspicuously mark the records as 

such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives any and all claims or causes 

of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue of COUNTY’S 

release of records covered under the Public Records Act. COUNTY 

agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in a 

timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 

which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR 

as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 

judicial order of protection if necessary. 

 

  





Exhibit A 

Working Together to Build 
  A Brighter Future for Youth 

Benton County Gang and Crime Prevention Initiative 

Organizational Background 
The Boys & Girls Clubs of Benton and Franklin Counties are committed to empowering all young people, 

especially those who need us most, to reach their full potential as productive, caring, responsible citizens. The 

Boys & Girls Clubs have been providing services to youth in the Tri-Cities area since the fall of 1996. The 

organization now offers 13 locations throughout Benton and Franklin Counties; these include four traditional 

drop-in Clubs, six afterschool childcare locations at Pasco elementary schools, a preschool, and two teen 

parenting partnerships. Consistent with our organizational values of Respect, Integrity, Stewardship, and 

Passion for Youth, we provide a broad range of programs and activities focused on our priority outcomes of 

Academic Success, Healthy Lifestyles, and Good Character and Citizenship. 

Organizational Experience  
Funding from the Benton County Gang and Crime Prevention Initiative (BCGCP Initiative) would support the 

cost of program expansion for local teens at the Club branch in Prosser. The Boys & Girls Clubs of Benton and 

Franklin Counties serves nearly 2,400 youth annually, over 60% of which are low-income youth. On any given 

day our Clubs are positively impacting the lives of over 700 local youth by providing them with a variety of 

unique, fun, and engaging programming. Programs implemented at the Boys & Girls Club include prevention 

programming, education enrichment, healthy lifestyle activities, and civic engagement programs. A survey 

from Fight Crime: Invest in Kids demonstrated that afterschool programs are absolutely essential to preventing 

crime; nine out of ten police chiefs agreed with the statement: “If America does not make greater investments in 

afterschool and child care programs to help children and youth now, we will pay far more later in crime, 

welfare, and other costs.” In the United States, on average, the cost of incarceration can cost over $400 per 

youth per day.  A recent study from the University of Michigan found that for every $1 invested in Boys & 

Girls Clubs nearly $10 worth of economic benefits are returned to communities and society. Our Traditional 

Drop-In Club locations serve a high proportion of at-risk and low-income youth and teens that rely on the Club 

for holistic support. Investments in Boys & Girls Clubs alleviate societal costs such as healthcare, public 

assistance, and incarceration; an investment through the BCGCP Initiative would allow for the Boys & Girls 

Club to continue empowering youth along their journey to reaching their full potential.  

Grant Administration Experience 
The organization has extensive experience in implementing grant-funded programs; staff members at the Club 

have well-rounded knowledge of how to implement various types of grants including those granted from 

government agencies, private and public foundations, corporate foundations, as well as small service 

organizations. Currently, the Boys & Girls Clubs of Benton and Franklin Counties implements prevention 



programming through a multi-year grant from the Benton Franklin Health District and the Washington State 

Department of Health. Other successful grant-funded programs currently implemented throughout the 

organization include a case management mentoring program through U.S. Department of Justice’s Office of 

Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (OJJDP) and the Boys & Girls Clubs of America (BGCA) and 

drug prevention programming for middle school-aged youth through the Washington State Department of 

Social and Health Services (DSHS). In addition to these large-scale grants, the organization also implements a 

variety of grant-funded programs through various corporations and regional service organizations. The Boys & 

Girls Club has the unique capacity to successfully implement many grant-funded programs through the efforts 

of the organization’s Grants & Outcomes Coordinator dedicated exclusively to grant writing, grant 

implementation, and program execution. The collaborative efforts of the Grants & Outcomes Coordinator, 

administrative staff members, and Branch-level staff members all contribute to the success of implementing 

grant-funded programs and initiatives. 

Program Summary
During the inaugural funding year of the BCGCP Initiative, The Boys & Girls Clubs of Benton and 

Franklin Counties is seeking funding to support one project at our Prosser Club location in Benton County. 

An executive summary and the funding amount requested can be found below.

Prosser Teen Program Investment         $40,000.00 

Funding support from the BCGCP Initiative would support the sustainability and expansion of the Teen 

Program at the Prosser Park Branch. Since the Club first opened their doors in 2010 they have seen a steady 

increase in teen membership and teen Club involvement; as of March 2016, the Prosser Branch has over 60 teen 

members and serves an average of 25 teens every day. Funding from the new initiative would support the Teen 

Program in Prosser by providing resources for training opportunities for staff, program curriculum, supplies, 

late-night events, as well as unique field trips exclusively for Club teens. 

Thank you for partnering with us to invest in Boys & Girls Club programs. We appreciate your 

consideration of grant funding to provide local youth with opportunities that are unique, fun, and 

educational. This strategic investment will ensure that taxpayer funds through the Public Safety 

Tax will have a lasting impact on youth throughout Benton County. 

If any questions arise please contact Brian Ace at brian.ace@kidexpert.org or (509)-543-9980. 



Prosser Teen Program Investment 

Community Need 
The Prosser Park Branch of the Boys & Girls Club first opened their doors in 2010 and currently serves school-

aged youth in Prosser and surrounding communities. Every year the Prosser Club has seen its teen population of 

middle school and high school students increase. Currently the Club serves an average of 25 teens each and 

every day at the satellite Teen Center located in facilities leased from First Baptist Church in Prosser. The 

Prosser Park Branch is seeking funding from the BCGCP Initiative to support the effective expansion of Teen 

Program services. The Boys & Girls Club provides unique services to teens that revolve around the 

organization’s three priority outcomes of Academic Success, Healthy Lifestyles, and Good Character & 

Citizenship. Youth in the Prosser community need a stable support system that will be there for them during not 

only academic hardships, but during other times of need as well. Youth and teens 

often become involved in gang activity or other risky behaviors in search of a source of stability in their lives. 

The Club prides itself on providing youth with a sense of Belonging, Usefulness, Influence, and Competence.  

These are the very things that gangs provide, and the Club has positioned itself as a positive alternative to gange 

involvement.  The Boys & Girls Club has the ability to provide teens with a place that offers stability but in a 

positive and productive way. It is imperative that the Club provide these teens that need us most with the tools 

and resources necessary for them to become positive, productive members of society.  

Funding for the Prosser Club’s Teen Program will 

support the cost of staffing, staff training, increasing 

program services, and will provide Prosser teens with 

more experiential learning opportunities. Prosser’s 

Teen Program will provide teens with a positive and 

productive after school alternative to staying home 

alone or participating in risky behaviors. Between 3 

PM and 7 PM, the hours immediately following 

school dismissal, are when juvenile crime, 

delinquency, and violence peak. The expansion of 

Prosser Club’s Teen Program will be able to provide 

local teens with a fun, safe, and productive 

environment that will foster the holistic growth and 

development of teens during a vital part of their 

adolescence. 

Project Details 
The Teen Program at the Prosser Park Branch, provided with the necessary resources, has the unique potential 

to provide local teens with a variety of fun and engaging opportunities for learning and growth. Support from 

the BCGCP Initiative would support significant expansion of program services to teens throughout the Prosser 

community. All activities and programs offered by the Boys & Girls Club are focused around the organization’s 

three priority outcomes of Academic Success, Healthy Lifestyles, and Good Character & Citizenship. Teen 

Program expansion would allow for program staff to receive training on how to more effectively implement 

quality programming, and would increase the variety of valuable program opportunities offered at the Prosser 

Club. The Club will also have the increased capacity to provide more teen late-night events throughout the year 

and an increased number of experiential learning field trips exclusively for teens.  

Teens will have the opportunity to participate in many leadership and volunteer programs to develop skills and 

grow in ways they may not be able to in a traditional school setting. A few of these programs include Keystone 

Club: a teen-led community service club, Youth of the Year: the Club’s premier recognition and scholarship 

program developing public speaking, writing, and interviewing skills, CareerLaunch: a career exploration 

program, and Junior Staff: a program empowering teens to become leaders within their Club community. 

Program expansion will allow for Club staff to be formally trained to implement programs through the Boys & 





Exhibit B: Progress Reporting & Measures 

Benton County Gang and Crime Prevention Initiative 

REPORTING PERIOD:

PROGRAM: Prosser Teen Program Investment

PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS/NARRATIVE:

<Brief program highlights & significant events that have occurred during the reporting period> 

PROGRAM DATA & MEASURABLES:

MEASURABLES PROGRESS TO DATE 

Enroll at least 55 teen members by 12/31/2016. 

Maintain average daily attendance (ADA) of at least 8 
teens per day during summer program months.  

(June -August) 

Maintain average daily attendance (ADA) of at least 
15 teens per day during school-year program months. 

(September - December) 

Teens attend Boys & Girls Club at least two days per 
week, on average each month during school-year 

program months. 
(September – December) 



Exhibit C

Description

Branch & Program Director Administrative oversight 16 hrs per week x $25 per hour 400.00$     

Grants & Outcomes Coordinator Administrative grant management 2 hrs per week x $20 per hour 40.00$     

Director of Operations 4 hrs per week x $30 per hour 120.00$     

Teen Coordinator Planning, preparing, & implementing programs 35 hrs per week x $14 per hour 490.00$     

Program Support Staff Second staff 20 hrs per week x $12 per hour 240.00$     

Subtotal: 1,290.00$   

Benefit Allocation 15% (PT and FT average) 193.50$     

Weekly Expense: 1,483.50$   

Total Personnel Expenses (22 weeks) 32,637.00$     

Program Supplies Average of $350 per month x 5 months to run variety of teen programs 1,750.00$   

Participation Incentives $100 per month x 5 months 500.00$     

Teen Late Nights $150 per event x 2 events per month x 5 months 1,500.00$   

Snacks Daily healthy snacks 4,875.00$   

Office Supplies $15 per month 75.00$     

Supply Expenses: 8,700.00$     

Field Trip Expenses Experiental Learning opportunities 3,125.00$   

Fuel for Field Trips $50 per month x 5 months 250.00$     

Staff Training Staff Development and program training 2,200.00$   

Program Curriculum Prevention program curriculum and various sets from Boys & Girls Clubs of America 3,000.00$   

Rent $100 per month x 5 months 500.00$     

Utilities Monthly utilities $700 per month x 5 months 3,500.00$   

Printing & Postage $25 per month x 5 months 125.00$     

Other Expenses: 12,700.00$     

Expense Total: 54,037.00$     

Brian Ace, Executive Director brian.ace@kidexpert.org

Andrea Locati, Director of Operations andrea@kidexpert.org

Dena Lodahl, Branch Director dena.lodahl@kidexpert.org

Other

The Boys & Girls Clubs of Benton and Franklin Counties appreciates your consideration of a $40,000 investment in the Prosser Club's Teen Program.

For inquiries please contact:

Prosser Teen Program Investment (August - December 2016)

Item

Personnel Expenses

Supplies





 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: Aug. 9, 2016 

Subject: Purchase Resolution 
for S&W Rifles 

Prepared by: L. Small 
Reviewed by:  

 

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _ 

Pass Resolution X__ 

Pass Ordinance    

Pass Motion     

Other 

 
Consent Agenda __X  _ 

Public Hearing    

1st Discussion    

2nd Discussion     

Other 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 

Per Resolutions 2015-626, 2016-304, and 2016-355 the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved the 
Budget Adjustment to the 2015-2016 Public Safety Tax Fund No. 148-101, Department 121 to pay for expenditures 
associated with wages, benefits, and equipment for four (4) Sheriff’s Deputies, (1) Metro Drug Task Force 
Detective, and (2) Detectives. 
 
There is a need for weapon equipment for the new positions that have already been hired, to include those who will 
be hired in the near future. 
 
The Sheriff’s Office solicited twelve (12) vendors listed on the MRSC Vendor’s List under Police Supplies for the 
purchase of seven (7) Smith & Wesson M&P15 assault rifles with only the following two companies responding: 
 

 ProForce Law Enforcement, Prescott, AZ - $5,723.46 including WSST 
 Gunarama Wholesale, Inc., Spokane, WA - $5,769.92 including WSST 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 

Approve the attached Resolution authorizing the purchase of seven (7) Smith and Wesson M&P15 Rifles for the 
Benton County Sheriff’s Office. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

 

Said expenditures shall be paid out of the Public Safety Tax Fund No. 0148-101, Department 121, as authorized in 
Resolution 2015-626, 2016-304, and 2016-355. 

 
MOTION 

 

Consent Agenda 

WEH
Text Box
k. Purchase Authorization for Seven (7) Smith and Wesson M&P15 Rifles for Sheriff’s Office



Orig:  Sheriff’s Office 
cc: Auditor, Purchase file, ProForce Law Enforcement  

Prepared by: L. Small 

 RESOLUTION 

  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF SEVEN (7) SMITH AND WESSON 

M&P15 RIFLES FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2015-626, 2016-304, and 2016-355 the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners approved the Budget Adjustment to the 2015-2016 Public Safety Tax Fund No. 148-
101, Department 121 to pay for expenditures associated with wages, benefits, and equipment for 
four (4) Sheriff’s Deputies, (1) Metro Drug Task Force Detective, and (2) Detectives; and  
 
WHEREAS, there is a need for weapon equipment for the new positions that have already been 
hired, to include those who will be hired in the near future; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office solicited the following twelve (12) vendors listed on the MRSC 
Vendor’s List under Police Supplies for the purchase of seven (7) Smith & Wesson M&P15 assault 
rifles with the following results:  
   
 ProForce Law Enforcement, Prescott, AZ - $5,723.46 including WSST 
 Gunarama Wholesale, Inc., Spokane, WA - $5,769.92 including WSST 
 911 Supply, Keizer, OR – Did not respond  
 Accurate Installation & Design, Everett, WA – Did not respond 
 Amercare Products, Inc., Woodinville, WA – Did not respond 
 Auto Additions, Inc., Salem, OR – Did not respond 
 Bob Barker Company, Fuquay-Varina, NC – Did not respond 
 Cascade Fire & Safety LLC, Yakima, WA – Did not respond 
 Columbia Safety, LLC, West Richland, WA – Did not respond  
 Intravaia Investigations LLC, Shoreline, WA – Did not respond 
 Larsen Firearms, Pasco, WA – Did not respond 
 SAFS, Inc., Tacoma, WA – Did not respond 
 

 

WHEREAS, ProForce Law Enforcement, Prescott, AZ came in as the lowest responsive bidder in 
the amount of $5,723.46 including WSST; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office reviewed the quotes for completeness and 
recommends awarding the purchase of seven (7) Smith & Wesson M&P15 assault rifles to ProForce 
Law Enforcement, Prescott, AZ in the amount of $5,723.46 including WSST as the company who 
provided the lowest proposal; NOW, THEREFORE 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County Washington, 
hereby awards the purchase seven (7) Smith & Wesson M&P15 assault rifles to ProForce Law 
Enforcement, Prescott, AZ in the amount of $5,723.46 including WSST, plus any applicable shipping 
fees. 
 

Dated this  _______ day of _________________, 2016 
 _______                                  ______ ___                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
 _______                                  ______ ___                
 Member 
 
 
Attest…………………………………………… _______                                  ______ ___                
                  Clerk of the Board  Member 
 
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 



QUOTE#

P R I C E
SHIP DATE

 Q U O T E

PAGE

SOLD SHIP
TO TO

JOB #   DATE CUST.# LOC. SALESMAN SHIP VIA FRT.

QTY. UOM
QUOTED ITEM NO./DESC. UNIT PRICE DISC. NET PRICE

COMMENT

TERMS

 
 
 
                                                                    317607    1
 
                                                                      A.S.A.P.
 
 
 
 
 
 
         BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE          BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE
         7122 W. OKANOGAN PLACE, BLDG B          DETECTIVE RICK WASHBURN
                                                 7122 W OKANOGA PL #2
         KENNEWICK        WA 99336               KENNEWICK        WA 99336
 
 
         509-222-3784
 
 
 
 
NA      07/08/16  037857   A   CURTIS WHEELER              FX G-FOB ORIGIN
 
 
 
          7   311000                             752.8900     EA      5,270.23
              S&W M&P15 223 SA RFL 16IN 30RD                  .00
 
          1   XFET                                  .0000     EA           .00
              THIS ITEM FET OUT                               .00
 
              IMPORTANT NOTICES:
              This quotation is based on the issuance of a department
              purchase order, F.A.E.T. Exemption, payment by check
              in 30 days (unless otherwise agreed) and in stated
              quantities.  ATF or the manufacturer may require additional
              forms.  Sample forms may be found at:
              http://www.ProForceonline.com/forms.htm
                                         -
              Ordering Instructions: Please fax a copy of the department
              purchase order and F.E.T. form to (928)445-3468.  PLEASE
              MAIL ORIGINALS to ProForce Law Enforcement, 3009 N. Hwy 89,
              Prescott, AZ 86301.
 
              Standard Terms are Net 30 days.  If department policy does
              not allow for partial shipments and payments, separate
              purchase orders for each item will be necessary.
 
              Standard manufacturer's warranty applies to all department
              purchases unless otherwise specifically noted.
 
              This quote is valid for 45 days from the date of issue,
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.ProForceonline.com/forms.htm


QUOTE#

P R I C E
SHIP DATE

 Q U O T E

PAGE

SOLD SHIP
TO TO

JOB #   DATE CUST.# LOC. SALESMAN SHIP VIA FRT.

QTY. UOM
QUOTED ITEM NO./DESC. UNIT PRICE DISC. NET PRICE

COMMENT

TERMS

 
 
 
                                                                    317607    2
 
                                                                      A.S.A.P.
 
 
 
 
 
 
         BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE          BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE
         7122 W. OKANOGAN PLACE, BLDG B          DETECTIVE RICK WASHBURN
                                                 7122 W OKANOGA PL #2
         KENNEWICK        WA 99336               KENNEWICK        WA 99336
 
 
         509-222-3784
 
 
 
 
NA      07/08/16  037857   A   CURTIS WHEELER              FX G-FOB ORIGIN
 
 
 
              pending credit approval, and is subject to manufacturer's
              availability and price change.  Please call (800) 367-5855
              if this bid is still pending on the expiration date for
              updated pricing.
 
              A 20% restocking fee will apply to all returned goods.
              Please call us for a return authorization number.
              IMPORTANT:  To order from this quotation, please sign below,
              attach Purchase Order, and email to:sales@proforceonline.com
              -
              -
              Printed  Name: ____________________________________________
              -
              Date: ___________________________ P.O.:___________________
              -
              Signature: _______________________________________________
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                     SALES AMOUNT     5,270.23
 
            FOR RICK WASHBURN
            RICHARD.WASHBURN@CO.BENTON.WA.US
            BY TRISH FIELDSON                    8.600% SALES TAX       453.23
                                                        SUB TOTAL     5,723.46
                  DUE NET 30 DAYS
 

mailto:to:sales@proforceonline.com
mailto:RICHARD.WASHBURN@CO.BENTON.WA.US


Date

Valid to

Quote # 

Kennewick, WA 99336 Page 1 of 1

 

Phone:

Email:

Delivery Via:  Best Way

Item # Qty Unit Cost Extension

1 7 $759.00 $5,313.00

 Federal Excise Tax Exemption Form and Dept. P.O. Required

Sub total $5,313.00

1 $456.92

Law Enforcement Equip.
Law Enforcement Firearms  ~  Ammunition  ~  Accessories  ~  

Joe O'Farrell, Sales

4009 E. Mission Ave - Spokane, WA.  99202

Tel   509-535-3040 ext.111 

GW-LE Gunarama Wholesale Inc

Toll free 800-223-2520 ext.111

28-Oct-16

Manufacturer's Warranty ONLY applies to all products, if so warranted.

pistols unless other arrangements are made.

Trade-in pistols must be complete with three magazines, sights and grips, 

unless otherwise noted.  

Shipping Costs of Trade-in Weapons are the Department's Responsibility. 

Trade-in weapons must be turned in within 30 days after receipt of new     Authorized Signature - Joe O'Farrell

Attn: Lisa Small

Est. Delivery Date:  6-9 months ARO

Benton Co. Sheriff's Office

Reference #

7122 W. Okanogan Pl., #B

QUOTATION

509-783-1310 Ext 3802

7/28/2016

Description

BCSO7282016

Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us

$5,769.92
Departmental prices are Net 30 days for each invoice.  

Deductions will be made if trade-in weapons are damaged or not as specified.  

Wa. Sales Tax @8.6%

Departmental prices do not include sales tax or FET (where applicable).   
Total

Joe O'Farrell

Smith & Wesson M&P15 #311000-LE .223/5.56 caliber, 16" bbl,

Removable carry handle, A2 front sight, 1-30 round magazine

Freight



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  8-9-2016         

Subject: Memorandum of 

Understanding 

with DNR 

Prepared by:       MSR 

Reviewed by:                  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution  XX  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   XX 

 
 

Consent Agenda            XX  

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            _____ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  

   

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 332-120-030 requires that any person who will destroy, remove or 
cover a survey monument first file a permit to do so with the Department of Natural Resources.  This is to 
ensure that surveyors who come looking for the monument at a later date will have a record of what 
happened to it. 
 
Many Counties, as part of their regular maintenance operations, frequently cover survey monuments.  For 
example Benton County performs chip seal annually and temporarily covers several hundred survey 
monuments in the process.  DNR recognizes that it is impractical to file a permit for each monument 
covered, particularly when the monument will only be covered for a matter of days.  In order to remain in 
compliance with the WAC, but reduce the work load filing permits, DNR and serval Counties and County 
Associations have come up with a memorandum of understanding as to how this situation will be handled.    
  
SUMMARY 
The County is required under state law to file a permit any time it covers a survey monument, even if only 
temporarily.  The Department of Natural Resources has prepared an MOU that allows for more expedient 
reporting of covered monuments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the MOU and authorize the County Engineer to sign it on behalf 
of Benton County. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Significant staff time will be saved in filing permits for temporarily covered monuments.  While not a direct 
savings it allows that time to be invested on other areas. 
 

MOTION 
Approve as part of the consent agenda 

WEH
Text Box
l. Memorandum of Understanding w/State of WA DNR Public Land Survey for Permit/Covered Monuments



Orig.: Public Works  M. Rasmussen 

RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY WASHINGTON: 

IN THE MATTER OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES PUBLIC LAND SURVEY OFFICE AND BENTON COUNTY 

WHEREAS, the County is required under Washington Administrative Code to file a permit to cover, 
remove or destroy any land survey monument, and 

WHEREAS, the County regularly covers monuments on a temporary basis as part of its chip sealing 
operations necessitating numerous permits to be filed, and 

WHEREAS, the Department of Natural Resources along with several Counties recognize the need to 
expedite the process of covered monument reporting in relations to chip seal operations, and 

WHEREAS, the parties have prepared a Memorandum of Understanding outlining a simplified reporting 
process, and 

WHEREAS, the County Engineer deems it in the best interest of the County to execute the 
Memorandum of Understanding as prepared; NOW THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners hereby approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the State of Washington Department of Natural Resources Public Land Survey 
Office and Benton County as presented, and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Engineer is authorized to execute said memorandum of 
understanding on behalf of Benton County. 

Dated this 9th day of August 2016.

 

Attest: 
Clerk of the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chairman 

 

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 



 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
  DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES PUBLIC LAND SURVEY OFFICE 
 AND BENTON COUNTY  
 
I.  GENERAL INFORMATION: 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the State of Washington, Department of Natural 
Resources, Public Land Survey Office, hereinafter referred to as the PLSO, and BENTON COUNTY, 
whose address is 620 Market St., Prosser,WA 99350, hereinafter referred to as the County. 

 
II.  PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this MOU is to cooperatively promote a reasonable method of survey monument 
preservation throughout the Bituminous Surface Treatment process, hereinafter referred to as chip seal, 
without having to submit an Application for Permit to Remove or Destroy a Survey Monument, per 332-
120-030 WAC.   

 
III.  RESPONSIBILITIES OF PARTIES: 

It shall be the responsibility of the County to provide notification to the PLSO, of the proposed annual 
chip seal projects within the County and to ensure that all land boundary survey monuments within the 
project area are located and protected.  All land boundary survey monuments shall be uncovered and 
made useable as soon as possible upon completion of chip seal activities or within 14 days.  The County 
shall notify PLSO, in an annual report, when the affected monuments are uncovered and usable.  April 1 
shall be the reporting of uncovered monuments for the previous year, December 31 shall be reporting of 
proposed annual chip seal projects for the upcoming year. Reporting shall be a map showing locations, or 
a spread sheet listing by mile post the project limits, or a cover letter on letterhead including chip seal 
reporting to the County Road Administration Board. Enacting and complying with the requirements of 
this MOU will eliminate the County’s responsibility to file a Permit to Remove or Destroy a Survey 
Monument, in regards to chip seal projects only. 
   
PLSO will keep a copy of the County’s proposed chip seal projects and completion notification on file.  
This file will be made available upon request to verify that the County has fulfilled the requirements of 
the MOU.     

 
IV. SUBSIDIARY AGREEMENTS: 

Additional working agreements, regarding specific cooperative efforts, if needed, shall be effected in 
writing by both parties as the need arises. 

 
V.  AMENDMENTS AND REVIEW: 

This MOU may be amended at any time by the mutual written consent of the parties concerned or 
terminated with thirty (30) days written notice by either party.  It may be subject to reconsideration at 
such other times as may be required and as agreed to by the parties entering into the MOU. 

 
VI. NATURE OF AGREEMENT 

This MOU is intended to facilitate the statutory obligations imposed upon the various counties and the 
State of Washington with respect to the preservation of survey monuments.  This MOU is intended only 
as a cooperative mechanism.  It is not intended to be a binding contract which is subject to enforcement in 
a court of law.  There would be no remedy for breach of this MOU.    

 
It is understood that professionally licensed engineers and land surveyors hold themselves to the 
professional standards of conduct as outlined in Chapter 196-27A WAC “Rules of Professional Conduct 
and Practice”. 

 
This MOU must be signed by all partners. Signatories must be officially authorized to sign on behalf of 
the agency, include title and agency name. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
BENTON COUNTY            DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
 
Matt Rasmussen, PE, County Engineer                             Kristina Horton, PLS,     Manager of the PLSO      
 
______________________________________               ______________________________________                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Signature                                                                            Signature 
______________________________________               ______________________________________                                                                                                                                                           
Date                                                                                    Date 
______________________________________               ______________________________________ 
Address                                                                              Address 
______________________________________               ______________________________________ 
Phone                                                                                 Phone  



WEH
Text Box
m. Traffic Control on County Roads re Speed Limit – Summit View







WEH
Text Box
n. Traffic Control on County Roads re Speed Limit – Bent Road







WEH
Text Box
o. Contract with B.C.V., Inc. for Hank Road Asphalt Repair & CR12 Pathway Asphalt Repair Project

































































































































WEH
Text Box
p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120





WEH
Text Box
Final Plat of the Altered Plat of Tripple Vista Estates No. 2; SUB 2016-001 ~ R. Lott














	CA - Public Works l.pdf
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	SUMMARY
	MOTION




